

Arts Presentation Canada (APC) Presenter networks and service organizations – Programming component

Table of Contents

Table of	Contents	1
1. Prea	amble	2
1.1	General program objective	2
1.2	Results expected by Arts Presentation Canada	3
1.3	APC components	3
2. Prog	gramming Component	4
2.1	Objective of the Programming Component	4
2.2 2.2.2 2.2.2 2.2.2 2.2.2	 Other eligibility criteria	4 4 4
2.3	Eligible expenses	5
2.4 2.4.2 2.4.2	······································	5
2.5 2.5.2 2.5.2		6
2.6	Maximum contribution or grant	6
2.7	Funding conditions	7
2.8	Submitting an application	7
2.9	Deadlines	7
2.10	Processing time	8
2.11	Acknowledgment of funding from the Department of Canadian Heritage	8
2.12	Multi-year funding	8
2.13 2.13 2.13	Application Form – Presenter networks and service organizations. 8.1 Reference Sheet – Document checklist. 8.2 Funding application general information 8.3 Program and applicant identification – Programming Component. 8.4 Questions – Presenter networks and service organizations 8.5 Sary	
J. GIUS	ssaı y	

(Aussi disponible en français)



1. Preamble¹

The Government of Canada is committed to giving Canadians direct access to diverse, quality artistic experiences through the financial assistance to arts presenters or the organizations that support them. Canadians shall have more access to artists' work from all regions of Canada that reflect its rich cultural diversity. Canadian communities of all backgrounds should have the opportunity to participate in and benefit from the broadest possible range of artistic experiences.

The Arts Presentation Canada (APC) program offers financial support to arts presenters, their networks and *service organizations*.

1.1 General program objective

To give Canadians direct access to diverse quality artistic experiences through financial assistance to arts presenters or the organizations that support them.

To achieve this objective, the Department of Canadian Heritage undertakes to:

- support arts presenters in the performing arts, *arts festivals* and their *service organizations* to help them strengthen their presentation practices by:
 - o encouraging diverse programming, meaning that presenters may feature:
 - new artistic disciplines or new genres within a discipline;
 - culturally diverse programming;
 - Aboriginal artistic expression;
 - artists from official language minority communities;
 - artistic productions created in other provinces or territories, or outside Canada;
 - works by emerging artists.
 - o organizing audience development and diversification activities;
 - o organizing outreach activities;
 - developing initiatives that bring *professional artists* into contact with residents of their community;
 - o supporting networking and professional development for presenters.
- support the emergence of presenters and presenter networks for under-served communities or artistic practices.

Applicants are encouraged to keep these goals in mind when applying to the APC program. Funding will be granted on a priority basis for activities directly related to the objective of the program.

¹ Note: Terms in *italics* are defined in the glossary.

1.2 Results expected by Arts Presentation Canada

In providing funding to organizations and activities eligible under Arts Presentation Canada, the Department of Canadian Heritage undertakes to demonstrate, at the national level, changes in:

- the diversity of performances, other artistic experiences and presentation activities (including outreach and audience development activities);
- the evolution of audiences attending different performances, *other artistic experiences* and presentation activities (including outreach and audience development activities);
- the diversity of presenters and arts festivals offering quality programming in Canada;
- the number and relevance of networking opportunities and professional development activities, as well as changes in the participation level of presenters within different contexts;
- partnerships developed, and the number of activities, resources and volunteers involved in activities to integrate the arts into community life.

Consequently, organizations to which the Department provides funding will contribute to the achievement the general Arts Presentation Canada program objective. The demonstration of these results will be achieved through the analysis of final reports that funding recipients are required to submit. Qualitative and quantitative measurements are integrated in the program's annexes and final reporting templates.

1.3 APC components

The Program has two components:

- the Programming Component for existing presenter organizations, arts festivals, presenter networks and service organizations;
- the Development Component to support the emergence of presenters and presenter networks for underserved communities or artistic practices. (Please contact your regional office for further details on the Development Component).

2. Programming Component

2.1 Objective of the Programming Component

To give Canadians direct access to diverse quality artistic experiences through financial assistance to arts presenters or the organizations that support them.

To achieve this objective, the Department of Canadian Heritage undertakes to:

- support arts presenters in the performing arts, *arts festivals* and their *service organizations* to help them strengthen their presentation practices by:
 - o encouraging diverse programming, meaning that presenters may feature:
 - new artistic disciplines or new genres within a discipline;
 - culturally diverse programming;
 - Aboriginal artistic expression;
 - artists from official language minority communities;
 - artistic productions created in other provinces or territories, or outside Canada;
 works by emerging artists.
 - o organizing audience development and diversification activities;
 - o organizing outreach activities;
 - developing initiatives that bring *professional artists* into contact with residents of their community;
 - o supporting networking and professional development for presenters.

2.2 Eligible organizations and activities

2.2.1 Eligible organizations

Organizations eligible for the Program are:

- performing arts presenters, their *presenter networks* and the *service organizations* that support them;
- *arts festivals* in performing arts, *media arts*, visual arts and literature, the principal activity of which is arts presentation.

2.2.2 Other eligibility criteria

To be eligible, service organizations and presenter networks must:

- have been in existence for at least one year;
- have their core activities focused on the professional development and networking activities for presenters.

2.2.3 Legal status of eligible organizations

Presenter *networks* and *service organizations* must be non-profit organizations incorporated under Part II of the *Canada Corporations Act* (or under corresponding provincial or territorial legislation).

Provincial, territorial or municipal *institutions* (including educational *institutions* that organize presentation activities for the public), as well as similar *institutions* or organizations of Status or Non-Status Indians, Inuit and Métis, are also eligible, if such organizations:

- offer presentation activities that are guided by an artistic vision;
- keep separate, clear and exact accounts for these presentation activities;
- can demonstrate that the federal funding does not replace funding from the province, territory or municipality, or any other *institution* or level of government, but rather that it is complementary in that it allows the presenter to contribute to the achievement of the APC objective.

2.2.4 Eligible activities

The following are eligible activities:

- networking and professional development activities;
- activities connected with organizing and developing presenter networks;
- activities to develop the presentation community.

2.3 Eligible expenses

Eligible costs are direct costs incurred by an organization in carrying out programming, including activities compatible with the objective of Arts Presentation Canada.

All expenses incurred during the year related to presentation, *audience development*, or networking and professional development activities are eligible, except for expenses related to:

- purchase or repair of specialized equipment (projection screen, sound or lighting console, film or video projection equipment, etc.);
- infrastructure;
- feasibility studies;
- the creation/production cycle.

2.4 Non-eligible organizations and activities

2.4.1 Ineligible organizations

For-profit businesses and organizations, festivals and presenters whose programming is not guided by an *artistic vision* are not eligible under the Program.

2.4.2 Ineligible activities

The following activities are ineligible under the Program:

- book fairs, galas and *competitions*;
- self-presentation activities (contact the Canada Council for the Arts);
- creation or production activities (contact the Canada Council for the Arts);
- tours within or outside Canada (contact the Canada Council for the Arts or Foreign Affairs Canada);
- feasibility studies (see the Cultural Spaces Canada program);
- purchase of specialized equipment (see the Cultural Spaces Canada program);
- infrastructure projects (see the Cultural Spaces Canada program);
- deficit-cutting plans and business recovery plans (see the Canadian Arts and Heritage Sustainability Program);
- deficit repayment;
- receptions;
- literary reading series.

2.5 Assessment process and criteria

2.5.1 Assessment process

Applications are received by the different regional offices of the Department of Canadian Heritage and analyzed for eligibility. An eligible application is assessed based on how it helps fulfill the APC objective, and taking into account respective contexts and regional circumstances. Applications are then compared with other applications from the same region and priorized in relation to the funds available. A program officer may visit the presentation venue or the organization to collect additional information on an event or the organization.

2.5.2 Assessment criteria for presenter networks and service organizations

The assessment takes into account the extent to which the activities proposed in the application help fulfill the general objective of the Program, as well as the quality of the applicant's previous accomplishments. The Department of Canadian Heritage wishes to support *presenter networks* and *service organizations* that facilitate networking among presenters and that offer activities contributing to the professional development of presenters, while taking into account local, regional and national circumstances. The quality of the proposed activity will be assessed taking into account these circumstances and the efforts of the organization to strengthen its practices. Following are the criteria for assessing applications:

- 1. Relevance and vitality of the organization and its activities in relation to the presenting community (40%)
 - effectiveness of professional development activities and services offered in relation to the mandate of the organization, its members and the area of presentation;
 - effectiveness of networking activities and services offered in relation to the mandate of the organization, its members and the area of presentation;
 - relevance of activities and services offered to the general program objective of Arts Presentation Canada.

2. Benefits of activities and services offered for presenters (40%)

- in terms of professional development;
- in terms of networking.

3. Quality of management (20%)

- sound management and governance;
- balanced budget and financial performance;
- diversification in public- and private-sector funding sources;
- capacity to measure achievement of intended results.

2.6 Maximum contribution or grant

The Program can provide support of up to 25% of eligible expenses, or a maximum of \$25,000 in the case of *grants* and \$200,000 in the case of *contributions*.

On rare occasions, a particularly deserving activity may be proposed for presenters working in communities where residents' participation in cultural events faces unusual barriers that cannot be overcome without substantial assistance or in an artistic discipline that is under-served or in a context where the sources of funding are limited. In such cases and provided that the need is clearly demonstrated and validated by a program officer, the Department may choose to provide an amount exceeding 25% (but not exceeding 50%) for eligible expenses.

2.7 Funding conditions

The choice of the form of funding will be made by the Department of Canadian Heritage, taking into account the amount awarded and previous funding to the applicant organization. The assistance may take the form of a *contribution* or a *grant*. In the case of a contribution the release of funds is conditional on the signing of a contribution agreement.

Recipient organizations must complete the activity for which they received funding. They must contact the regional office of the Department of Canadian Heritage if they wish to make substantial changes to the activity. If an organization cancels or significantly scales down the activity for which it received funding from the Department, it must reimburse all or part of the amount received at the request of the Department.

All organizations that receive funding under APC must, no later than six months after the end of their fiscal year for which they receive funding, complete a final report using the **Final Report** form supplied by the Department of Canadian Heritage. The documents that must be provided for the final report are itemized in the **Final Report Document Checklist** accompanying the **Final Report** form. It is imperative that organizations that receive a *contribution* submit a financial statement, and that organizations that receive a *contribution* of more than \$50,000 submit an audited financial statement.

- Arts Presentation Canada does not offer funding for activities that have already taken place.
- Organizations are warned that the Department takes no responsibility for costs related to contractual commitments entered into before signing of the *contribution* agreement or receiving a *grant* announcement letter. Applicants entering into such commitments do so at their own risk.
- Organizations receiving financial support from the department agree to submit a final report. If an organization does not submit a final report within the stipulated time frame, together with a financial statement in the case of an organization that has received a *contribution*, it becomes ineligible for future funding from Arts Presentation Canada.
- An organization may submit only one application per year under the Programming Support Component of APC.
- The assessment process is competitive within a program with limited resources. An eligible organization that submits an application is not in any way guaranteed funding from APC in a given year.
- An organization receiving APC financial support may receive an amount that does not correspond to its original request.
- An organization receiving financial support for a given year is not guaranteed funding for subsequent years by the Department of Canadian Heritage.
- The decision by the Department of Canadian Heritage to provide or refuse funding to an organization under Arts Presentation Canada is final.

2.8 Submitting an application

Before proceeding, organizations that wish to submit an application for the first time must contact the regional office of Canadian Heritage to verify whether they and their activities are eligible. Application forms are available at regional offices or can be downloaded from the Department's Web site: http://www.pch.gc.ca/progs/pac-apc/index_e.cfm.

2.9 Deadlines

April 30, 2006, or September 30, 2006, for activities starting after April 1, 2007.

Once completed, applications must be sent to the regional office of the Department of Canadian Heritage. When a submission deadline falls on a non-working day, it is extended to the following working day. The postmark provides proof of the date sent. To be considered, applications must be duly completed and signed, and accompanied by all required attachments. Applications that are incomplete or sent after the deadline generally will not be assessed. Any application submitted is subject to the *Access to Information Act* and the *Privacy Act*.

The Department of Canadian Heritage encourages organizations to submit applications concerning *arts festivals* and *performing arts presentation seasons* at least eight months before the start of the activity for which funding is requested.

2.10 **Processing time**

On receiving the application, the Department of Canadian Heritage sends the applicant an acknowledgment of receipt. The Department generally informs organizations of its decision six months after the application date. Organizations that request funding under APC will receive a letter informing them of the decision of the Department of Canadian Heritage.

2.11 Acknowledgment of funding from the Department of Canadian Heritage

Recipients of funding from the Department of Canadian Heritage are required to acknowledge the support of the Department in all promotional documents related to the activities supported. The conditions for such acknowledgements are specified in the *contribution* agreements or *grant* announcement letters.

2.12 Multi-year funding

The Department of Canadian Heritage may offer certain organizations multi-year funding. The eligible organizations will be selected by the Department from previous years' recipients. The Department of Canadian Heritage will contact the organizations that it has pre-selected to invite them, if they wish, to submit a multi-year application. The organizations invited to do so must, at a minimum:

- have obtained funding under APC over at least three years;
- have a balanced budget;
- have an accumulated deficit not exceeding 10% of the annual budget;
- be able to provide a viable *multi-year action plan*, together with realistic budget projections.

Continuation of multi-year funding is conditional on the stability of the organization. The Department of Canadian Heritage may cease to offer this type of funding should the organization undergo a change in general management or program management, face major governance or financial difficulties, or be required to adopt a business recovery plan by the Department or another government or public body.

Organizations receiving multi-year funding must provide an annual report on their activities, together with a financial statement.

2.13 Application Form – Presenter networks and service organizations

2.13.1 Reference Sheet – Document checklist

ARTS PRESENTATION CANADA PROGRAMMING COMPONENT

~	Your application must include:
	The "Funding Application General Information" page.
	The "Program and Applicant Identification" page, including answers to questions 1-10.
	Yours answers to questions 11-18.
	A budget of revenues and expenditures (question 27, columns A, B, C).
	"Planned professional development, networking activities and services" (question 29A).
	"Professional development, networking activities and services completed during the past year " (question 29B).
	Promotional material (Brochures, programs or reports on past events or activities, etc.).
	Your organization's organizational chart, a list of permanent employees and a list of board members.
	The board motion authorizing this application (duly signed by the chair or the president) and designating the person with signing authority.
	The curriculum vitae of the executive director.
	Financial statements for the last complete year of activities.
	If your organization has never before received funding from Arts Presentation Canada or has recently changed its mandate: a copy of the letters patent or corporate charter specifying the non-profit status, mandate of your organization and a brief one page organizational history.

Checklist:

- Note that the Board Chair or the President of the organization must sign both the Funding application general information form and the Program application form.
- Do not use pencil to fill out the form or attached documents.
- Initial any corrections that you make.
- Keep a copy of the application for your records.

2.13.2 Funding application general information

Patrimoine

Please complete parts A and B, sign and date the form in part C.

Canadian Heritage

INSTRUCTIONS

Heritage Canadien

FUNDING APPLICATION GENERAL INFORMATION

DEMANDE DE FINANCEMENT RENSEIGNEMENTS GÉNÉRAUX

INSTRUCTIONS

Remplir les parties A et B, signer le formulaire et inscrire la date à la partie C.

PART A - APPLICANT INFORMATION / PARTIE A - RENSEIGNEMENTS SUR LE DEMANDEUR									
INCORPORATED NAME / NOM DE LA SOCIÉTÉ									
Usual Name / Nom usuel	Previous Na	ame of Organization / Ancien nom de l'organisme							
Scope of Organization's Activities	Municipal Provincial / Territorial	Regional National International							
Portée des activités de l'organisme	Municipale Provinciale / territoriale	Régionale Nationale Internationale							
LEGAL STATUS / STATUT JURIDIQUE	Registration No. N° d'enregistrement	In Process En traitement							
Incorporated Yes Federa	•								
Constitué en Dui Oui Niveau société	fédéral V	\bullet							
	cial / Federal Date provincial / fédéral	Date Applied Date de la demande							
Registered with Canadian Customs	Registration No.	In Process							
& Revenue Agency as a Charitable Ui Oui Organization	N° d'enregistrement	En traitement							
Enregistré auprès de l'Agence des douanes et du revenu du Canada à	\bullet	$\mathbf{\nabla}$							
titre d'organisme de No bienfaisance No	Date	Date Applied Date de la							
		demande							
PART B - CONTACT INFORMATION / PART	TIE B - RENSEIGNEMENTS SUR LA PERSON	NNE-RESSOURCE							
Contact Person's Name for Official Correspondence	Mr. Mrs. Ms.	Title / Titre							
Nom de la personne-ressource pour correspondance offic	MILE.								
Street Address (Street, City, Province/Territory, Postal Co Adresse (rue, ville, province/territoire, code postal)	de) Mailing Address (if different)) / Adresse postale (si différente)							
Office Telephone No. / N° de téléphone (bureau)	Residence Telephone No. / N° de téléphone (domicile)	Fax / Télécopieur							
()	()								
E-Mail / Courrier électronique	Web Site / Site web	In which official language do English							
		you wish to communicate? Anglais Langue officielle de French							
		communication demandée Français							
OFFICE USE ONLY RÉSERVÉ À L'ADMINISTRATION INTERNE	Date Received Date de réception	Program Officer Agent de programme							
PART C - AFFIRMATION / PARTIE C - AFF	IRMATION								
 I AFFIRM THAT the information in this application is accurate and complete and the project proposal, including plans and budgets, are fairly presented. I agree that once funding is provided, any change to the project proposal will require prior approval of the Department. I agree to publicly acknowledge funding and assistance by the Department, in accordance with the terms of the funding greement. I also agree to submit a final report, and where required, financial accounting for evaluation of the activity funded by the Department. I understand that the information provided in this application may be accessible under the Access to Information Act. I also agree to respect the spirit and intent of the various acts governing the programs of the Department of Canadian Heritage. AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE / SIGNATURE AUTORISÉE 									
Authorized Signature / Signataire autorisé	Name and Title (please print) / Nom et titre (er	n lettres moulées) Date							
7540-CH-802-0951 (01/06)		Canadä							

PROTECTED when completed

÷	
---	--

Canadian

Heritage

Patrimoine Canadien

ARTS PRESENTATION CANADA – PRO	GRAMMING COMPONENT	FOR CANADIAN HERITAGE USE ONLY						
Program and Applicant I	dentification	File number						
Presenter networks and serv		Deadline						
1. Name of organization:								
2. Title of proposed activity:								
3. Type of organization	4. Amount requested from the APC Progra	am						
□ Presenter network □ Service organization								
5. Director of organization \Box Mr. \Box Ms.	Title	Telephone						
6. Number of employees								
Paid	Unpaid (vol	unteers)						
Full-time Part-time	Full-time	Part-time						
7. Recent activities of the organization								
□ Networking activities □ Professional development a								
 Brief description of the proposed activity. (Write a brief description of your activities in this box, not on an attached sheet. The description may be posted on the Canadian Heritage Web site if your activities receive funding.) 								
9. Time frame Start and end date of the proposed activity:	Your fiscal year in which the programmir	na will be included:						
(YY/MM/DD)	(YY/MM/DD)							
From to	From to							
10. Board Chair or President of organization	s. Signature of Board chair or President	(or authorized person)						

Canadä

ARTS PRESENTATION CANADA PROGRAMMING COMPONENT

Relevance and vitality of the organization and its activities in relation to the presenting community (40 %) In addition to the answers to questions 11 and 12, the relevance and quality of the organization and its activities in relation to the presenting community will be assessed using the schedule of planned professional development, networking activities and services (29 A) and taking into account the quality of the applicant's previous activities (29 B).

- 11. Describe the professional development or networking activities and services offered to members or other partners in the presenting community, in relation to the mandate of your organisation.
- 12. Describe how the activities and services offered are in line with the objective of Arts Presentation Canada. Identify your expected outcome for this section.

Please limit this section to five pages, if possible.

Benefits of activities and services offered for presenters (40 %)

In addition to the answers to questions 13 to 15, the benefits of activities and services offered for presenters will be assessed using the schedule of planned professional development, networking activities and services (29 A) and taking into account the quality of the applicant's previous activities (29 B)

- 13. What are the benefits of the activities and services offered for presenters' professional development organization development?
- 14. What are the benefits of the activities and services offered in terms of networking?
- 15. Identify your expected outcomes for this section.

Please limit this section to three pages, if possible.

Quality of management (20 %)

In addition to the answers to questions 16 to 18, quality of management will be assessed taking into account the financial statement, the budget (27) and the organizational chart supplied by the applicant.

- 16. Describe the role of board members and volunteers in your organization. Describe committees and their role in the development and implementation of your activities.
- 17. Assess your organization's financial situation. If your organization has a surplus or deficit of more than 15% of its annual revenues, indicate how the surplus will be used or provide a deficit recovery plan, as appropriate.
- 18. Describe the expected results in terms of management and governance. How will you know that you have met your expectations? In other words what assessment tools do you intend to use?

Please limit this section to four pages, if possible.

Comments:

→ Questions 11 to 18 will be used to assess to what extent your proposed activities help fulfill the general objective of the program.

Don't forget to fill in the budget of revenues and expenditures (question 27) and the schedule of professional presentation and outreach activities (questions 29A and 29B).

3. Glossary

Artistic vision

For a presenter organization, artistic vision lies in the presenter's perception of what could be offered in the community in order to allow both qualitative and quantitative audience development, as well as diversification of the artistic experiences available in that community. Artistic vision is based on:

- knowledge of the audience, its tastes, interests and development potential;
- knowledge of the local community and other artistic experiences available;
- knowledge of the artistic milieu and the various disciplines, contemporary trends, individual creators, the circumstances and conditions for carrying out activities, and the available programming opportunities.

Artistic vision assumes a capacity to imagine, develop and implement a range of programs, dynamically combining the potential of the audience and of the artistic milieu.

Arts festivals

Events focusing principally on presentation of the arts and the development of audiences for the arts. The programming is guided by a clearly articulated *artistic vision*.

Arts Presenter

Arts presenters select the artistic programming for public presentation in their community based on an *artistic vision*. They hire professional artists, groups and companies and are responsible for paying a guaranteed fee for each presentation. They provide the venue and supply the technical and promotional support. Presenters may also organize audience development and/or outreach in support of their artistic programming. They have a thorough knowledge of the audiences in their communities, of the professional arts community and the various networks that support both the artists and the presenters.

Audience development

A process that may involve two stages. The first consists of identifying, informing, researching, reaching and engaging a new audience through specific promotional activities, market research, audience profiling and establishing contacts in particular sectors of the community. Once the audience has been identified and engaged, the second stage consists of building knowledge and appreciation of specific artistic disciplines or forms, presenting new artists or disciplines. This is achieved through public conferences, round table presentations, pre-or post-show panel discussions, workshops, demonstrations, master classes, and other forms of contact with the community by professional artists programmed by the presenter in the community.

Competition

Contest in which participants are judged chiefly on the artistic excellence of their work, under fair and equitable rules and conditions. Contestants each perform for judges, with or without an audience. The most deserving contestant usually receives a prize. Please note that competitions are ineligible in this program.

Contribution

A conditional transfer of funds in which there is or may be a need to ensure that the amount provided has been used in accordance with legislative or program requirements. More exactly, a contribution reimburses a recipient for specific expenses meeting conditions defined in the contribution agreement. The conditions concern important aspects such as the identification of the recipient(s), an explanation of how the proposed contribution will help achieve the Program objective, the maximum amount to be paid, the payment basis and schedule, identification of the person empowered to approve, sign and process payment, auditing procedures and criteria for assessing whether the contribution program is effective in achieving its objective.

Creation/production

Artistic work, research and production of a new or substantially revised artwork (e.g., play, dance, score, script, sculpture, video or installation). Production also covers stage revivals and may include presentation in certain fields, such as theatre or dance.

Cultural diversity

Culturally diverse presentation is the ability of the presenter to focus on equality of opportunity for visible minority artists. The definition of visible minority artists includes, but is not limited to, those of Asian, African, Latin American, Arab, and mixed heritage.

Donation

A sum of money usually given either by an individual, a company or an organization. They may request to remain anonymous or be recognized publicly. The receiver must have a legal charitable number and acknowledge this donation through a tax receipt.

Grant

Transfer payment issued when the government chooses to pursue a policy or implement a program by providing funds to individuals or organizations. The eligibility criteria and the applications received prior to payment are sufficient guarantee that the objectives for the payment will be met. Under the APC program, an organization that receives a grant is still required to submit a final report together with a financial statement.

Guaranteed fee

The amount a presenter agrees to pay the professional artist or artistic organization for a performance, regardless of the number of tickets sold. The fee is negotiated on a per performance basis. The artist or organization may negotiate a percentage of the box office receipts on top of the guaranteed fee.

In-Kind

An individual, a company or organization offers goods (materials such as printing, furniture, equipment, amount equivalent to renting equipment, etc.) or services (legal advice, consultation, book keeping, etc) which has a market value (meaning that one could apply a cost for the service if one had had to pay for it) to a not for profit organization. The *in-kind* donation may or may not be recognized publicly. Note that APC will only recognize rendered services that are professional in nature and will not reimburse this item within the financial contribution allocation.

Institution

A provincial, territorial or municipal institution (including an educational institution) is a public body operated solely in the public interest and established for educational or cultural purposes.

Measure

The ability of an organization to take note of its goals and results in quantitative and qualitative manners for the purpose of building programming and organizational capacity, securing long term funding through judicious reporting of actions and activities, informing board members, strategic planning, etc. Examples of such tools are: questionnaires, surveys, audience comments and polling, audience attendance, market and cultural trends, communication on web sites, various feedback mechanisms, etc.

Media arts

Arts that make use of film processes, video and audio techniques, new media, or a combination of any of these. Note that the APC program will priorize media arts presentation where the artist will be directly involved with its audience either through a presentation or an audience development activity. *Media arts* festivals must pay to all artists whose films/videos/multimedia are being screened. The festival must present works entirely created and developed by artists. The presenter must demonstrate a genuine commitment to presenting works by independent artists, including films, video or audio productions, and new media. APC will give priority to applicants where artists are remunerated to undertake outreach activities with the general public during the festival.

Multi-year action plan

A three-year plan with both artistic and financial aspects. It covers activity planning (programming and audience renewal/diversification), the approach that the organization plans to adopt and the funds that it plans to obtain to ensure success. This action plan, approved by the board of the organization, must cover the entire period for which multi-year funding is being sought from the Department.

Other artistic experiences

Experiences that bring residents of a community into contact with artists in an environment other than that of a performance.

Outreach activities

Outreach activities may take the form of public conferences, pre- or post-show panel discussions, round table presentations, workshops open to the public, demonstrations, residencies, seminars, public rehearsals, master classes with local artists (or arts students), discussions or participation in local events or in practices in schools, community centres or local seniors centres.

Performing arts

Includes the entire range of genres (traditional, contemporary, avant-garde, classical, street, etc) associated with all the live art disciplines: dance, theatre, music, performance art, spoken word, circus, humour.

Performing arts presentation season

A series of performing arts presentations grouping performances over an artistic season. A season may focus on a single artistic discipline or may cover a number of them. Choices are guided by a clearly defined *artistic vision*.

Presenter network

Organization that represents and champions the interests of a group of presenters to the arts community and government institutions. It also organizes activities and offers services to its members.

Professional artist

Artist who has specialized training in the field (not necessarily in academic institutions), who is recognized by his or her peers (artists working in the same artistic tradition), who is committed to devoting more time to the artistic activity if financially feasible, and who has a history of public presentation.

Self-presentation

Assumption by professional artists or artistic organizations of the financial risks related to presentation of their own programs, with ticket revenues going to them. The artist/organization usually takes responsibility for administrative, technical and promotional aspects.

Service organization

Non-profit organization that directly furthers the interests of artists, creators, presenters and other artistic organizations, through activities associated with the delivery of professional services.

Sponsorship

To sponsor something is to support an event, activity, person or organization by providing money or other resources in exchange for access to an audience.

Ticket pricing policy

Pricing policy for tickets for shows, subscription charges, charges for training workshops, etc. A ticketing policy stipulates the grounds on which the organization sets ticket prices. It can take into consideration the cost of tickets for other events, the economic situation in the region, a particular audience, charges for similar activities, etc. A presenter may also seek sponsors in order to offer an activity free of charge. The Department may decide not to support an activity if the organization's ticket pricing policy creates unfair competition for its colleagues. Exceptions may be made when the event occurs within communities facing specific barriers to participation.

27) Budget - revenues and expenditures (within applicant's fiscal year)

							_		E EINAL Vees for which funding was			
	File number:	A Last year completed		B Current year		C Year for which funding is re	auested	D REVISED BUDGET		FINAL – Year for which funding was awarded		
		From to		From to		From to	4	From to		From to		
		\$	%	\$	%	\$	%	\$	%	\$	%	
	Revenues earned											
1	Box office revenues											
2	Subscription or membership revenues											
3	Registration revenues											
4	Other revenues (attach details)											
5	Sub-total, revenues earned	0\$		0 \$		0\$		0 \$		0 \$	6	
	Private-sector funding	л						_				
6	Donations											
7	Sponsorships											
8	Foundations											
9	Fundraising events											
10	Sub-total, private-sector funding	0\$		0\$		0\$		0 \$		0\$	5	
11	Merchandising *											
12	Other revenues (attach details)											
13	In-kind, donations of goods and services **											
14												
15	Total, self-generated revenues	0 \$		0\$		0\$		0\$		0\$	5	
	Foreign funding	л						_				
	Foreign government (specify):											
	Other foreign revenues											
	Total foreign revenues	0\$		0 \$		0\$		0 \$		0\$	5	
	Public-sector funding	8						_ _				
	Federal government											
19	Arts Presentation Canada											
20												
21												
22												
23	Sub-total, federal government	0\$		0\$		0\$		0 \$		0\$	6	
	Provincial government (specify):											
24												
25												
26												
27												
28	Sub-total, provincial government	0\$		0\$		0\$		0 \$		0\$	6	
29	Territory or region (specify):											
30												
31	Municipal or other institutions (specify):											
32												
	Total, Canadian public-sector funding	0\$		0 \$		0\$		0 \$		0\$	5	
	Applicant contribution			0\$		0\$		0 \$		0\$		
	Total revenues	0\$		0\$		0\$		0\$		0\$	-	
	* Merchandising revenue net of cost											

* Merchandising revenue net of cost

** Donations of goods and services having a market value may be recorded as revenues, but they must be described in detail on a sheet attached to the budget.

27) Budget - revenues and expenditures (within applicant's fiscal year)

								E		
	ile number:	A Last year completed		B Current year		C Year for which funding is requested	D REVISED BUDGET		FINAL – Year for which funding was awarded	
	Name of Organization :	From to	From to		From to	From to		From to		
	Name of Organization .	\$		s	%	\$ %		%	\$	%
ſ	Presentation expenses	Ť		*	70	•	•	,,,	•	70
36	Salaries or fees (related to presenting)									
37	Expense related to presenting				1					
38	Fees paid to Canadian artists				1					ĺ
39	Fees paid to foreign artists				1					ĺ
40	Artists' travel expenses (detail in Cda and/or Int'l)				1					Ì
41	Artists' per diem				1					
42	Artists' accommodation				1					
43	Other presentation expenses (attach details)]					
44	otal presentation expenses	0\$		0\$		0 \$	0\$		0\$	
	Promotion, marketing and									
	udience development expenses				_					
45	Salaries or fees (audience development)									
46	Expenses (audience development)									
47	Salaries or fees (outreach activities)									ļ
48	Expenses (outreach activities)				ļ					
49	Other salaries or fees (promotion)				ļ					
50	Promotion expenses (attach details)									
51	otal promotion expenses	0\$		0\$		0\$	0 \$		0\$	
	Expenses (presentation venue)									
52	Hall rental costs				ļ					
53	Technical and front of house costs				ļ					
54	Facility operating costs				ļ					
55	Other expenses (presentation venue) - (attach details)									
56	otal expenses (presentation venue)	0\$		0\$		0 \$	0\$		0\$	
	letworking and professional development expenses				1					1
57	Salaries or fees				-					
58	Networking or professional development expenses									
28	otal, professional development expenses	0\$		0\$	ļ	0 \$	0\$		0\$	
	Administrative expenses				1					1
60 61	Salaries or fees (administrative staff)				1					
	Administrative expenses (attach details)									
		0\$		0\$	ļ	0\$	0\$		0\$	
	n exchange of good and services ** (attach details)				{					
64 65	Other expenses (attach details)				1					
	otal expenses	0\$		0\$		0\$	0\$		0\$	
	Surplus/deficit	0 \$		0\$		0 \$	0\$		0 \$	
68	Accumulated surplus/deficit									

** Donations of goods and services having a market value may be recorded as revenues, but they must be described in detail on a sheet attached to the budget.

Arts Presentation Canada

29a Networking and professional development activities planned

			If activity**, please specify		Y		ur	her	tside			
Activity date (Day/Month)	Year	Title of activity	Event/activity*	Networking**	Professional development***	Duration of activity (number of days)	Total number of presenter organizations	Total number of presenter from your province	Total number of presenter from other provinces and territories	Total number of presenter from outside Canada	Total number of presenter representatives	Total number of participants
				<u> </u> 					<u> </u> 			
									<u>i</u>			
				<u>.</u>					<u>.</u>			
									<u> </u>			
				<u> </u>								
				 :					 :			
		elusing uchiele and a multiple activities are hold										

*Event/Activity :

**Type of activity:

Ev : Period during which one or multiple activities are held

Act : All activities presented during an event and which could be identified among the following types.

***Networking activity (NE - networking event, AGM- annual general meeting, NS - networking services, SC - showcase/contact, O - other.)

File Number : ____

****Professional development activity (C - conference, M - mentoring, P - panel, RT - roundtable, TD - tools development, W - workshop, O - other)

Applicant : _

Arts Presentation Canada 29b Networking and professional development activities undertaken in the last completed season

				If activity**, please specify		v		n	ler	tside		
Activity date (Day/Month)	Year	Title of activity	Event/activity*	Networking**	Professional development***	Duration of activity (number of days)	Total number of presenter organizations	Total number of presenter from your province	Total number of presenter from other provinces and territories	Total number of presenter from outside Canada	Total number of presenter representatives	Total number of participants
			<u> </u>				<u>.</u>				<u>.</u>	
			1				 		1 1		 	
	1 1 1			1 1 1			<u> </u> 		I I I		<u> </u> 	
	i i		<u> </u> 	i i			1		<u> </u> 		1	
			! 						<u>.</u>			
	<u>}</u>		<u>.</u>	<u>}</u>			<u> </u> 		<u> </u>		<u> </u> 	

Ev : Period during which one or multiple activities are held

*Event/Activity :

**Type of activity:

Act : All activities presented during an event and which could be identified among the following types.

***Networking activity (NE - networking event, AGM- annual general meeting, NS - networking services, SC - showcase/contact, O - other.)

File Number : _____

****Professional development activity (C - conference, M - mentoring, P - panel, RT - roundtable, TD - tools development, W - workshop, O - other)

Applicant : __